
	

HDRB 
March 11, 2015 

Page 1	

A meeting of the Historic District Review Board was held on March 11, 2015 at 2:00 
p.m. in the City Hall Planning Conference Room, 1911 Boundary Street. In attendance 
were Chairman Joel Newman, board members Erica Dickerson, Quinn Peitz, and Barbara 
Laurie, and city planner Libby Anderson. Chuck Symes was absent. 
 
In accordance with the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30‐4‐80(d) as 
amended, all local media were duly notified of the time, date, place, and agenda of this 
meeting. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Newman called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 
   
MINUTES 
Mr. Peitz made a motion, second by Ms. Dickerson, to approve the minutes of the 
February 11, 2015 meeting as submitted. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
REVIEW OF FULL BOARD PROJECTS 
101 WEST STREET 
Identified as District R120, Tax Map 4, Parcel 931, Alterations 
Applicant: Beaufort Yacht Club (HR15‐04) 
The applicant is requesting approval to replace wood siding with hardy type of siding 
and replace or repair window.  
 
Ms. Anderson said this is non‐contributing, and the applicant wants to replace the siding 
with hardy siding and to repair or replace the windows, depending on the decision 
about the siding. Steve Tully said if they were approved to replace the siding, they 
would replace the windows, too. The first floor is “perfect,” he said, but the second and 
third floors were “hacked on that building.” They feel that replacing the siding would be 
the most efficient way to handle it. When the Waterfront Park was built, they 
negotiated a deal to move the building back, so it was built in the ‘70s. Main Street 
Beaufort is the first floor tenant. There have been water issues in the building, Mr. Tully 
said, and they think they will find the source of them when they pull the siding off the 
building.  
 
Maxine Lutz said she wasn’t in attendance at the Preservation Committee meeting. The 
committee had asked the same questions as to whether they thought the applicants 
should repair what’s there or replace it, so she wants to hear what the Historic District 
Review Board (HDRB) has to say. Mr. Tully explained to Mr. Peitz that to find out where 
the water is coming from, they can pull the siding off and will also replace the windows, 
but if they have to just repair the rot, they will leave the windows. The windows are 
aluminum, and they have proposed a vinyl clad “upgrade” window. Mr. Peitz clarified 
that the applicants’ plan was that the building will look identical, but the siding and 
windows will be brand new, with no alterations or new openings. Mr. Tully said that’s 
correct.  



	

HDRB 
March 11, 2015 

Page 2	

Chairman Newman said he was surprised that the building is non‐contributing. He loves 
the building “because it’s an odd duck” and is a perfect example of how places have 
their own particular look. He feels it’s imperative that the applicants “keep it in good 
shape.” Chairman Newman said he is not a fan of hardy because it’s thin and doesn’t 
have the “decrepitude” of wood, but he is “crazy about keeping the building up” 
because he loves it. If treated wood were primed on all 4 sides, it would probably 
behave as it should, but no one does that anymore; they “jump on synthetics.” Mr. Peitz 
made a motion that the application as submitted be approved with notes to use 
smooth hardy and to replace the windows as depicted in the photo submitted with 
the application (with the 6 over 6 configuration). Ms. Dickerson seconded the motion. 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
1006 WASHINGTON STREET 
Identified as District R120, Tax Map 4, Parcel 76, New House 
Applicant: Thomas Michaels for Don and June Jones (HR15‐05) 
The applicant is requesting HRB approval of a new residence and a two‐car garage with 
a guest suite above.  
 
Ms. Anderson said Tom Michaels is the applicant, and the owner, Don Jones, was also 
present. The building is across the street from the Washington Street Park in the 
Northwest Quadrant. According to the Sanborn Map, there was a one‐story cottage on 
the lot, constructed between 1912–1924. It was demolished after 1958. The applicant 
wants to construct a new single‐story residence.  
 
Lauren Kelly had prepared the report, Ms. Anderson said. The design is compatible with 
the neighborhood in terms of scale and proportion. Ms. Kelly had a question about 
replacing the awning windows in the bedroom with 2628 casements on either side of 
the chimney. This side of the building will be very visible from the street. Ms. Kelly felt 
there was enough information for final approval with colors and with staff’s review of 
any other issues that might arise after approval.  
 
Ms. Lutz said the Preservation Committee is “absolutely thrilled” that “an infill project is 
going on.” They felt the submittal was incomplete since the elevations don’t show the 
relationship between the proposed structures or the other structures in the area. The 
driveway is a threat to a large live oak, and they wanted clarification that the setbacks 
were met. 
 
Mr. Michaels brought color samples for the body (“Tornado Watch”) and the trim (a 
white called “Prudence”). The roof, Mr. Michaels said, is charcoal grey. The shutters will 
be Charleston green. In regard to the concerns about the windows and false shutters, 
Mr. Michaels said they are over a sink, and if they enlarge the windows, they will have 
an issue with the mirror, so they went with the awning to have a more natural light in 
the bathroom.  
 



	

HDRB 
March 11, 2015 

Page 3	

Chairman Newman commented that he had been on the site, and the tree there is not a 
live oak; “it’s a sugarberry or something.” Mr. Michaels said he thinks the Preservation 
Committee was talking about a live oak, which is “not a very grand live oak.” Chairman 
Newman said in regard to the house, the hip on the gable across the front “works fine,” 
but unlike the scale and form, which are nice for Beaufort, that and the columns “should 
be different.” On the back of the house, the master bedroom and the porch notch; if it 
were a step‐down and a porch came off the side of it, it would shorten the length of the 
house a little bit. This would scale it to be “a little more in keeping with the 
neighborhood” without taking anything away from the interior space.  
 
Mr. Peitz asked how Chairman Newman was suggesting doing the roof over the door. 
Mr. Michaels showed Mr. Peitz a drawing he had made. The porch could be shedded or 
hipped so the gable is distinct, as is the front porch. When you look at the side of the 
house, in regard to the overall gable, it would be two‐thirds of the length and then the 
step‐down. Chairman Newman said this is more typical of what’s seen in Beaufort.  
 
Chairman Newman said he doesn’t have a problem with the windows that Ms. Kelly had 
brought up. Ms. Dickerson said she thought it was “visually interesting.” He said Mr. 
Michaels had made an attempt to give it some vertical scale. 
 
Mr. Peitz asked if the submittal was complete or not. Ms. Anderson said Ms. Kelly had 
said it was enough for final approval, with further questions to go to staff. Mr. Peitz 
asked about the live oak, and Chairman Newman said he had misidentified the tree that 
was of concern. Ms. Laurie asked whose tree the live oak is. Ms. Anderson said the 
Charles Street Property owner owns the underlying property, but the Washington Street 
property owner has the right of access here. Chairman Newman asked if the easement 
continues on past here. Mr. Peitz asked if a car could go around that tree. Mr. Jones said 
“No.” 
 
Chairman Newman said in the past, the Board has approved something with suggestions 
and allowed the person to come back and get staff approval through the administrator; 
Mr. Jones will make the adjustments, and the administrator determines if it’s complete. 
Mr. Michaels explained to Mr. Jones what Chairman Newman, Ms. Kelly, and the Board 
had suggested. Mr. Jones said he was amenable to that.  
 
Mr. Peitz made a motion for final approval with the following comments:  

 The live oak can be removed out of the easement; 

 The form will eliminate the hip and gable on the front elevation, and substitute it 
with a porch roof; 

 On the back, the elevation would be altered to show a gable with a shed porch 
roof; 

 Colors as submitted would be approved; 

 The bedroom windows would both be approved as submitted; and 



	

HDRB 
March 11, 2015 

Page 4	

 The columns should be similar to the house at 915 Craven, at the corner of 
Craven and Charles Street on the northeast corner. 
 

Ms. Dickerson seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
400 PORT REPUBLIC STREET 
Identified as R120, Tax Map 4, Parcel 964 
Alterations, Additions 
Applicant: Scott Sonoc, Owner (HR15‐06) 
The applicant is requesting to paint the house white, replace rear windows with glass 
doors, replace the lower portion of existing front stairs with a landing and side stairs, 
and fill existing round openings in the façade above street entrance door and above 
riverside windows. 
 
Ms. Anderson said Mr. Sonoc would like to replace the stairs with a landing and change 
them to side stairs, and change the windows in the rear façade to glass doors. He also 
wants to fill in the round openings in the façade above the street entrance, and change 
the paint color to a light color (not white). Ms. Dickerson made a motion to approve as 
submitted. Mr. Peitz seconded. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
WEST STREET EXTENSION  
Chairman Newman asked about the West Street extension, and Ms. Anderson said that 
Liza Hill had revised the plan after the individuals on the board had met with her. The 
plan was to be sent to the board. Ms. Lutz asked what kinds of plant material were 
decided on. Ms. Dickerson said they had suggested palm trees. 
 
Mr. Peitz said on Port Republic, they are building a porch on “a hair salon.” Chairman 
Newman said that had come to the Historic District Review Board for review before Mr. 
Peitz served on the Board.  
 
Mr. Peitz asked how long approvals are good for if one doesn’t start immediately and/or 
show progress. Ms. Lutz said two years. Ms. Anderson said design review approvals 
require the submittal of a plan, but it can be extended for up to five years. 
 
Ms. Hill showed the Board the plans for the West Street Extension. She said there’s 
permeable brick in the central shaded area. She showed the cobbles around the palms, 
and added that there will be rainwater collection and irrigation. There is a 3’ concrete 
area, because all brick would have put her $20,000 over budget. It’s out to bid, Ms. Hill 
said, and there will be no additional funds for the project. 
 
Chairman Newman had suggested lights on palms, Ms. Hill said. They will have an in‐
ground well light. It “will shoot up the tree.” Ms. Hill said Chairman Newman had 
suggested a soft canned light at the top and the bottom. He said he thought “a green 
horizon” was important for it “to seem more inviting.” They are using sable palms, Ms. 



	

HDRB 
March 11, 2015 

Page 5	

Hill said. Ms. Lutz asked if Public Works had agreed to that. Ms. Hill said no objections 
were raised. The seeds, agriculturally, will have no bed to fall into, she said, so it “will be 
easy to blow through.”  
 
Mr. Peitz asked if a tree grows taller if it’s trimmed. Ms. Hill said it grows 6–12” per year 
whether it’s trimmed or not. A general discussion of palm trees followed.  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Ms. Dickerson made a 
motion, seconded by Mr. Peitz, to adjourn the meeting. The motion passed 
unanimously. Chairman Newman adjourned the meeting at 3:08 p.m. 


